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INTRODUCTION

ABOUT SAVH

The Singapore Association of the Visually Handicapped (SAVH), formerly known
as the Singapore Association for the Blind (SAB), is the national voluntary welfare
organisation for the blind in Singapore. Founded in 1951, SAVH aims to help the
visually impaired to acquire new skills and gain self-reliance to integrate into
society.

Vision

To promote the needs, interests and aspirations of the visually handicapped. 

Mission

To help the visually handicapped help themselves.

Objectives

l To serve as an Association for the visually handicapped and to promote the 
welfare of the visually handicapped in Singapore;

l To facilitate and encourage greater participation of the visually handicapped 
in the administration of their affairs, activities and in the Association’s 
management;

l To work towards the abolition of architectural, attitudinal, social, cultural, 
educational, employment and other barriers that prevent the total integration 
and equal treatment of the visually handicapped in the community;

l To encourage eye care, safety and research in the prevention and cure of 
blindness and related diseases;

l To do all such other things as are conducive to attaining the above objectives, 
including appeals for funds to help the visually handicapped.
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Registration

SAVH is affiliated to the National Council of Social Service (NCSS), registered with 
the Registrar of Societies (172/1951 WEL) and Commissioner of Charities (00059), 
with a Unique Entity Number for Societies (S61SS0119J) and is an approved 
Institution of Public Character (IPC000443 renewed from 1 January 2014 to 30 
September 2016). 

Corporate Governance

SAVH has complied fully with the Governance Evaluation Checklist for IPCs. The 
complete checklist is available at www.charities.gov.sg

Conflict of Interest Policy

All Executive Committee members, chairpersons of sub-committees and staff of 
SAVH are required to read and understand the Association’s conflict of interest 
policy and make full disclosure of interests, relationships and holdings that 
could potentially result in a conflict of interest. The members and staff have fully 
complied with the conflict of interest policy. 
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SAVH CLIENTS & MEMBERS

CLIENTS

SAVH serves Singapore citizens and permanent residents who must be certified 
blind or with low vision (partial sight) by an eye specialist or ophthalmologist. 

These include people who are born blind as well as those who have lost their 
vision through accidents, illnesses or ageing. Clients are entitled to the whole 
range of services at the Association including eye care, rehabilitation, training 
and counselling, provided mostly free of charge. They are also eligible to receive 
subsidies to purchase assistive devices, subject to means testing. 

Clients at SAVH range from infants to the elderly. As at 31 March 2015, the number 
of registered clients stood at 3,520.

Yearly Trend of Registered Clients
(as at 31ST March 2015)

Financial
Year

Blind Low Vision All Clients

Cumulative
Total

Newly
Registered

Cumulative
Total

Newly
Registered

Cumulative
Total

Newly
Registered

2003/04 1,087 27 1,456 100 2,543 127

2004/05 1,111 35 1,549 116 2,660 151

2005/06 1,110 9 1,646 109 2,756 118

2006/07 1,118 15 1,716 83 2,834 98

2007/08 1,130 16 1,789 87 2,919 103

2008/09 1,134 14 1,895 114 3,029 128

2009/10 1,135 5 1,996 115 3,131 120

2010/11 1,142 10 2,093 103 3,235 113

2011/12 1,105 6 2,196 158 3,301 164

2012/13 1,074 24 2,257 120 3,331 144

2013/14 1,024 23 2,308 148 3,332 171

2014/15 1023 19 2,497 195 3,520 214
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Clients By Age & Gender
(as at 31ST March 2015)

Age
Group

Blind Low Vision All Clients
Total %

Male Female Male Female Male Female

0 to 4 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0.03

5 to 12 6 4 25 9 31 13 44 1.26

13 to 18 11 11 36 21 47 32 79 2.24

19 to 24 22 13 41 37 63 50 113 3.24

25 to 30 14 20 56 31 70 51 121 3.44

31 to 40 30 30 123 64 153 94 247 7.02

41 to 50 64 45 166 105 230 150 380 10.8

51 to 60 105 68 277 154 382 222 604 17.2

61 to 70 122 67 344 174 466 241 707 20

71+ 227 164 523 310 750 474 1224 34.8

Total 601 422 1592 905 2193 1327 3520 100

Clients By Ethnic Group & Gender
(as at 31ST March 2015)

Ethnic
Group

Blind Low Vision All Clients
Total %

Male Female Male Female Male Female

Chinese 457 325 1236 713 1693 1038 2731 77.6

Malay 88 60 186 104 274 164 438 12.4

Indian 49 29 137 70 186 99 285 8.1

Others 7 8 33 18 40 26 66 1.9

Total 601 422 1592 905 2193 1327 3520 100
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MEMBERS

SAVH members can be sighted or visually handicapped. Membership benefits 
include the right to:

l Attend and speak up at Annual General Meetings of the Association;
l Vote on all matters within the objects of the Association and to elect Executive 

Committee members;
l Stand for election as Executive Committee Members.

SAVH membership as at 31 March 2015 stood at 411. The breakdown is as follows:

Financial
Year

Visually Handicapped Sighted
Total

Ordinary Life Ordinary Life

2011/12 222 17 20 115 374

2012/13 226 17 23 115 381

2013/14 226 19 23 118 386

2014/15 230 21 43 117 411
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MESSAGES

PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE

Before I commence on the highlights, let me first say that ‘To help the visually 
handicapped help themselves’, which is SAVH’s mission, continues to have 
relevance and importance in Singapore, especially as our population is aging 
resulting in more having vision problems .Our Government’s intention to forge 
Singapore to become an inclusive society has also made us more relevant. 

In order to fulfil this mission, the sighted and the non-sighted must continue 
to work together to harness each other’s potential. Greater acceptance and 
empathy for each other is paramount in fostering better understanding and 
tolerance of each other. Better communication will also help in comprehending 
each other’s challenges. 

I would therefore like to urge all of us to work together as one united SAVH to 
bring us forward to face new challenges.     

Let me now highlight some of our salient points.

SAVH  63rd Anniversary Gala Dinner

This Anniversary Gala Dinner was a success as we had the honour of the presence 
of our Guest of Honour, Mr Tharman Shanmugaratnam, Deputy Prime Minister 
and Minister of Finance to celebrate with our visually impaired clients, donors 
and volunteers.

Dialogue session with SAVH Members

We conducted a dialogue session with members to explain why certain changes 
to SAVH Constitution were proposed such as deleting the requirement that 
majority of members must be visually impaired, deleting the restriction of Exco 
membership based on visually impaired etc. However with the strong resistance 
from the visually impaired, these proposed changes will not be tabled as 
amendments during the coming AGM.

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

With the AGM scheduled on 29 August 2015, I would like to encourage all 
members of SAVH to attend this event. Please show your support to SAVH by 
attending this event. SAVH belongs to us; all of us should show our support for 
our very own Association.
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Financial performance

For the financial year ended 31 March 2015, we achieved a good result, with a 
surplus for the year of $993,879 compared to a surplus for the year of $501,208 
in the previous year. This is mainly due to higher donations collected. Total funds 
increased to $7,618,065 compared to $6,498,955 in the previous year.

Funding by NCSS and Tote Board

We would like to express our thanks and appreciation to National Council of 
Social Services, Community Chest and Tote Board Social Service Fund for funding 
four of our many services, namely Braille Production Unit, Library Services, Low 
Vision Clinic and Vision Rehabilitation Programme.

Special thanks also goes to President’s Challenge 2014 for their kind donation. 

Donors/ Volunteers/ Sponsors

On behalf of SAVH, I would like to thank all our donors, sponsors and volunteers 
for their unwavering support.

Clients

We have to provide relevant and timely services to our clients in a holistic manner. 
With Singapore’s population aging, we hope to provide more services to this 
group. Currently we are looking into introducing new services for the youth and 
the elderly.

Members

The Executive Committee hopes to increase membership so that those who can 
assist SAVH can be invited to participate as members.

Staff

Our most important asset is our staff, which includes both sighted and those with 
impaired sight. We thank them for their kind contribution. SAVH continues to face 
high staff turnover. We are therefore addressing this by looking into new initiatives.

Highlights

We wish to thank MSF for selecting us for the ‘Care and Share programme’. This will 
allow us to receive matching funds if it is used for appropriate categories.
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Looking forward

SAVH hopes to introduce a Day Care Centre for those who are visually impaired. 
We have started a pilot project and will be built up as the need arises.

Conclusion

It is never enough to show appreciation. So it leaves me to once again express 
my gratitude to our Patron, Professor Tommy Koh, for his unwavering support, my 
Executive Committee members, clients, members, donors, volunteers and staff. 

Let us together ‘help the blind to help themselves’.

Phillip Lee Soo Hoon
President
SAVH
23 July 2015
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HONORARY SECRETARY’S MESSAGE

On behalf of the Executive Committee I present herewith the annual report of the 
Association for 2014/15 term of office.

The Executive Committee

The 61st Annual General Meeting was held on 30 August 2014. The members who 
were elected or co-opted to the executive committee at the meeting are named 
in the executive committee 2014/15 section of this report.

New Executive Committee Members

The executive committee welcomed Ms. Lyn Loh, Mr. Ng Guan Sing and Mr. Loke 
Foo Weng as the new executive committee members. They are currently employed 
in the capacity of customer relations and masseurs respectively.

Resignation of Executive Committee Members

There were no resignations of executive committee members during the financial 
year.

New Members

25 new members joined SAVH during the financial year. We extend our welcome 
to them.

Executive Committee Meetings

The management committee met on 12 occasions in FY 2014/15.

Danny Chia Choon Guan
Honorary Secretary
23 July 2015
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HONORARY TREASURER’S MESSAGE

Overview

SAVH recorded a healthy surplus of $993,879 for the financial year ended 31 March 
2015, compared to a surplus of $501,208 for the previous year.

For this period, we received funds from National Council of Social Services, 
Community Chest and Tote Board service fund for four of our services, namely 
BPU, LVC, VRP and Library.

Income

There was an increase in total income from $4,365,756 to $3,573,674 in the previous 
year. This is contributed mainly from more fund raising activities.

Expenditure

Total resources expended increased to $3,371,877 compared to $3,072,466.

Assets

Total assets stood at $7,769,856 an increase from the previous period of $6,651,059.

Our accumulated funds are at a healthy position of $6,006,667 compared to 
$4,734,157 in the previous period. Total funds recorded (including accumulated 
funds) increased to $7,618,065 compared to $6,498,955 in the previous period.

In spite of our improved financial position, we should continue to control our costs 
and increase our fund raising efforts. At the same time we should be prudent in 
our financial management and maintain good governance and best practices.

I would like to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to the members of 
the Finance Sub-Committee and our staff for their invaluable support.

Albert Ang Hong Woo
Honorary Treasurer
23 July 2015
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 ORGANISATION

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 2014/15
As at 31 March 2015

Professor Tommy Koh Thong Bee  Patron
Mr Phillip Lee Soo Hoon  President
Mr Tan Guan Heng  Vice-President
Ms Chua Swee Keow  Vice-President
Mr Danny Chia Choon Guan  Honorary Secretary
Mr Albert Ang Hong Woo Honorary Treasurer
Mr Victor Chen Kah Keng Member
Mr Alfred Shee Ping Fatt  Member
Mr John Ting Kang Chung  Member
Ms Lyn Loh  Member
Mr Ng Guan Sing  Member
Mr Loke Foo Weng Member
Mr Khoo Kong Ngian Member
Mr Adrian Tan Gim Hai   Member (Co-opted)
Mr Lau Kin Harn Member (Co-opted)

Mr. Phillip Lee Soo Hoon is a retired audit partner of an accounting firm.
Mr. Tan Guan Heng, who is visually handicapped, is a writer of many books.
Ms. Chua Swee Keow is in the Human Resources field.
Mr. Danny Chia Choon Guan, who is visually handicapped, is a teacher at a
Secondary school.
Mr. Victor Chen Kah Keng is a Human Resource director in a multinational.
Mr. Albert Ang Hong Woo is a semi-retired Accountant.
Mr. Alfred Shee Ping Fatt runs his own accounting practice.
Mr. Adrian Tan Gim Hai is a practicing advocate and solicitor.
Mr. John Ting Kang Chung is an architect.
Mr. Lau Kin Harn is an accountant with a multinational.
Mr. Khoo Kong Ngian, who is visually handicapped, is a retired army officer, who is 
now in the insurance line.
Mr. Loke Foo Weng who is visually handicapped, is a masseur.
Mr. Ng Guan Sing who is visually handicapped, is a masseur.
Ms. Lyn Loh who is visually handicapped, is a customer relations officer.
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MAIN SERVICES

VISION REHABILITATION PROGRAMME

The Vision Rehabilitation Program (VRP) strives to enhance the quality of life of 
the visually handicapped by adopting a holistic approach. The two components 
of the VRP are social work intervention and rehabilitation services. These services 
provided by the Social Workers, Occupational Therapists and Therapy Assistants 
aim to equip the visually handicapped with practical life skills to gain functional 
independence and mobility as well as to assist them to better integrate into 
their environment and society.

This is a program partially funded by the government, in an effort to provide 
holistic support to the community and in recognition of individuals with special 
needs.

The Vision Rehabilitation program comprises of the following services:

Social Work intervention

The focus of the Social Workers’ work under the VRP entails case management 
services which includes information and referral, financial assistance, counselling, 
grief work, crisis intervention and collaboration with external agencies and 
internal departments. The helping professionals provide a multi-prong approach 
to support the clients and their family members so that they can better cope 
with the challenges that their clients face.

Rehabilitation Services

The Occupational Therapist and the Therapy Assistants provide a series of 
services to empower the visually handicapped. These are as follows:

l  Basic Cane Techniques (BCT) Training
l  Orientation & Mobility (O&M) Training
l  Basic Sighted Guide Techniques (BSGT) Training
l Activities of Daily Living (ADL) Training
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Home Care Programme

The Homecare Programme is an extension of the Vision Rehabilitation Programme. 
The target beneficiaries under this programme are clients who need long term 
supervision and support in the community. The programme strives to assist 
clients by going to their homes and providing comprehensive occupational 
therapy, case management and befriending services.

The main components of the programme would include:

l  Rehabilitation Services
l  Orientation and Mobility (O & M) Training 
l Activities of Daily Living Skills Training 
l Environmental/Home Modification 
l Sighted Guide Techniques 
l Caregiver Training 
l Case management services
l Befriending services by volunteers 

Tan Chay Bing Education Fund and Credit Suisse Tuition Subsidy Scheme

The Tan Chay Bing Education Fund and Credit Suisse Tuition Subsidy Scheme 
provided visually handicapped students from lower income groups with annual 
bursaries and tuition grants respectively. 40 students benefitted from the Tan 
Chay Bing Education Fund while another three students received monthly tuition 
subsidies from the Credit Suisse Tuition Subsidy Scheme.

Regular Service Project for the Visually Handicapped (RSPVH) of Nanyang 
Technological University

During the financial year, student volunteers from the Regular Service Project 
for the Visually Handicapped (RSPVH) of Nanyang Technological University 
conducted weekly group tuition for 16 students with visual impairment. In 
addition, RSPVH also organised recreational activities for the students.

New referrals to SAVH

For FY2014/15, 214 new clients were registered. 28.2 % of the referrals were 
from Singapore National Eye Centre and 16.9 % of the clients were referred by 
Tan Tock Seng Hospital. Referrals from SAVH’s Low Vision Clinic, Changi General 
Hospital, Khoo Teck Puat Hospital and National University Hospital form 54.9 % 
of the total referrals.
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A breakdown of the referrals is given in the table below:-

Sources of Referrals of New Clients in FY 2014/15

Institution Number

Singapore National Eye Centre 61

Tan Tock Seng Hospital 36

Changi General Hospital 6

National University Hospital 2

Alexandra Hospital 0

Khoo Teck Puat Hospital 1

SAVH Low Vision Clinic 103

Jurong Medical Centre 0
Others(including Gleneagles Hospital, Camden Medical Centre,  
Mount Elizabeth Hospital) 5

Total 214

Cane & Mobility Training

For FY2014/15, 88 newly registered clients were provided with a free white cane 
each. These clients were taught to move about safely and effectively within their 
homes and in the community.

A total of 160 clients were assessed and trained by the Rehabilitation Section 
in Basic Cane Techniques (BCT) Orientation and Mobility (O & M) and Activities 
of Daily Living (ADL)/Instrumental Activities of Daily Living (IADL) during the 
financial year. Training in mobility provided visually impaired clients with skills 
necessary to travel safely and independently.

Sighted Guide Training

The Rehabilitation Section provided training to a total of 1785 caregivers and 
volunteers during the financial year.
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Number of Clients, Caregivers and Volunteers Trained in FY 2014/2015

Type Of Training Clients Caregivers And  
Volunteers

Basic Cane Technique 113 -

Orientation and Mobility 38 -

Activities of Daily Living 9 -

Basic Sighted Guide Techniques - 1785

Total 160 1785

Food ration scheme

With the generous donations by well-wishers and collaborations with external 
agencies such as the Food bank, the Social Work Section is able to pool together 
food items for distribution to our needy clients. These needy clients receive 
food rations on an ad-hoc or regular basis. For FY 2014/15, a total of 27 clients 
benefitted from the scheme.

Orientation for new clients

The Social Work Section organised two duck tours with the generous sponsorship 
from the New Creation Church. The tours took place on 14 June 2014 and 13 
September 2014 for 14 and 18 clients respectively. The tours offer the clients an 
opportunity to socialise with fellow individuals with visual impairment.

Social and Recreational Events

A total of 16 activities and outings were organised for the clients by various 
organisations, institutions and volunteers. The list of activities included the 
following:
- Public health talks at Chui Huay Lim Club
- Lunch at Yan Palace Restaurant
- Lunch at Blk 619 Woodlands St 52
- Gardens-by-the-Bay
- National museum visit by Building and Construction Authority
- SAVH-Zetland Jubilation Games Scrabble Tournament
- Love concert by Lian Gek Ho General Contractor J T Tan
- Greendale Secondary School performance
- The Purple Parade by NCSS and Autism Association
- Phoenix Contact Vision Walk
- Dental check-ups for Bizlink Workshop clients by Dental Talk (Willing Heart)
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-Christmas dinner and concert by the Singapore American School
-Christmas party cum dinner at Grand Mercure Roxy Hotel
-Here’s Where I Belong SG50 Xinyao Concert by People’s Association
-Chinese New Year Ang Bao Distribution 
-SAVH Charity Dinner at Mandarin Orchard Hotel

Parenting Group

The parenting group is the latest initiative by the Social Work Section to 
engage and empower parents of children with visual impairment and visually 
handicapped who are parents. To kick start the group, a talk entitled “Raising 
secure daughters and confident sons” by Dr Wu Mi Yin was conducted on 28 
March 2015 for 15 parents. The talk offers a platform for individuals to share 
their invaluable parenting experiences and enrich their personal experiences 
with expert sharing by Dr Wu.

Touch Diabetes Support Group

The Social Work Section collaborated with the Touch Community Services to 
further develop the existing pool of clients with visual impairment that they are 
already serving. The first group meeting commenced in the first quarter of 2015. 
It is envisioned that the group will meet every quarter.

Elderly Group

The Social Work Section conducts two regular groups for the elderly who 
meet each week. Staff from the Social Work Section and volunteers engaged 
the elderly in meaningful activities such as yoga, trips to places of interest and 
games to provide them the necessary stimulation and to remain active during 
their golden years.

Youth Support Group

The youth support group “Project OK” is an outreach effort by the Social Work 
Section to attend to the psych-social and recreational needs of the visually 
impaired youth. The project offers services to youths from 17 to 25 years old 
who are students from upper secondary to tertiary level. At present, there are 17 
youths, out of which 5 are female clients while the rest are male clients.

During the period from 1 April 2014 to 31 March 2015, the following were 
organised:

Apr 14 – Sharing among members 
May 14 – Sharing by Dr Yeo Sze Ling
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Jun 14 – Kayaking at Mac Ritchie Reservoir
Jul 14 – Sharing among members
Aug 14 – Makan Trail
Sep 14 – Tandem Cycling cum BBQ
Dec 14 – Countdown Party 
Feb 15 – Get-together @ Seoul Garden Hotpot
Mar 15 – Celebration Event (for youth members who did well for national exams 
in 2014)

SUMMARY OF WORK BY VISION REHABILITATION PROGRAMME TEAM

All clients Youths Children Seniors Parents Diabetic

Vision Rehabilitation 
Programme x

Homecare Pro-
gramme x

Orientation for new 
clients

x  
(new only)

Food ration scheme x  
(needy only)

Social and recre-
ational events x

Tan Chay Bin Educa-
tion Fund x x

Credit Suisse Tuition 
Subsidy Scheme x x

RSPVH of Nanyang 
Technological Uni-
versity

x x

Project OK x

Elderly Group x

Parenting Group x
Diabetic Support 
Group x

Programme 
Scheme

Target group
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LOW VISION CLINIC

Low Vision Assessment

SAVH low vision clinic understands that in many instances, vision loss is preventable 
and sometimes is symptomatic of other health issues. We recognize that vision 
loss has no boundaries with respect to gender, income, ethnicity, culture, other 
disabilities or age.

The low vision programme deals with ongoing effects of vision loss by encouraging 
early referrals and vision rehabilitation through low vision assessment, prescribing 
appropriate devices to enhance the individual visual needs as well as assisting one 
in achieving their specific visual goals.

In this financial year the clinic assessed a total of 463 persons being certified with 
low vision, out of which 135 were newly referred cases and reviewed 328 clients and 
with more than 90% of the existing clients reported and demonstrated that they 
could execute their visual tasks independently and efficiently with the prescribed 
low vision devices and/ or prescription lenses.

The top causes of visual impairments for the new referrals were Glaucoma (22%), 
Age-Related Macular Degeneration (13.5%) and Diabetic Retinopathy (10.5%).

Activities

Apart from low vision assessment, the clinic also conducted sport classes 
evaluation for the low vision athletes participating in sports such as Bowling, 
Goal ball and Track and Field competitions held locally and overseas as well.

The clinic holds several awareness events to demonstrate and strengthen our 
services and programmes through collaborating with hospital ophthalmic 
departments.

It also promoted measures to outreach to new ophthalmic set-ups in Novena Mt. 
Elizabeth and Connexion at Farrer Road.

LVC is partially funded by the government, in an effort to provide holistic support 
to the community and in recognition of individuals with special needs.

Following the MOU with Essilor Vision Foundation (EVF) in 2014, the clinic has 
dispensed more than 70 pairs of prescription lenses benefitting our low vision 
clients in enhancing their visual tasks.
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TABLE 1
CAUSES OF VISION IMPAIRMENT IN NEW CASES SEEN IN LOW VISION CLINIC
1ST APRIL 2014 TO 31ST MARCH 2015

DIAGNOSIS NO %

RETINA

Age–Related Macular Degeneration 18 13.5

Central Retinal Vein Occlusion (CRVO)  4 2.9

CMV Retinitis  1 0.7

Cone Rod Dystrophy       8 6

Diabetic Retinopathy 14 10.5

Detached Retina  1 0.7

Macular Dystrophy  7 5.2

Myopic Degeneration 10 7

Macular Scar  3 2.2

Photoreceptor Dysfunction  1 0.7

Retinitis Pigmentosa 11 8.3

Stargardt’s Disease  1 0.7

CONGENITAL ANOMALIES & OTHER PAEDIATRIC EYE CONDITION

Albinism 3 2.2

Congenital Cataracts 1 0.7

Congenital Nystagmus 1 0.7

Leber’s Amaurosis 2 1.5

Retinopathy of prematurity 1 0.7

Retrolentel Fibroplasia 1 0.7

DISORDERS OF OPTIC NERVE & VISUAL PATHWAYS

Optic Atrophy 5 3.7

Optic Neuropathy 4 2.9

GLAUCOMA 29 22

CORNEA DISEASE

Corneal  Ulcer 1 0.7

OTHERS

Glioma 2 1.5

Hemaniopia 3 2.2

Retinoblastoma 1 0.7

Visual Snow 1 0.7

Wolfron Syndrome 1 0.7

GRAND TOTAL 135 100
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TABLE 2
SOURCES OF REFERRAL OF NEW CASES  
TO LOW VISION CLINIC
(AS AT 31ST MARCH 2015)

REFERRING HOSPITALS: No: %

Alexander Hospital 1 0.7

Changi General Hospital (CGH) 42 31

Jurong Medical Centre 1 0.7

Khoo Teck Phuat Hospital (KTPH) 5 3.7

KK Women & Children Hospital 5 3.7

National University Hospital (NUH) 17 12.6

Private Ophthalmologists 22 16.5

Singapore General Hospital (SGH) 4 2.9

Singapore National Eye Centre (SNEC) 25 18.6

Tan Tock Seng Hospital Pte Ltd (TTSH) 9 6.7

Welfare Services / Other Agencies 4 2.9

TOTAL 135 100

TABLE 3
SERVICES RENDERED TO NEW CASES  
AT LOW VISION CLINIC / NEW PRESCRIPTIONS
(AS AT 31ST MARCH 2015)

PRESCRIPTIONS No: %

Given new prescription for glasses 19 14.5

Given new prescription for low vision devices (LVD) 49 36

Not given new prescription, referred to other services 65 48

Consultation only 2 1.5

TOTAL 135 100
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SATELLITE LOW VISION CLINIC

Since 2001, SAVH has been collaborating with the Singapore National Eye 
Centre (SNEC) to make its services accessible to a larger number of individuals 
with vision impairment. This collaboration has benefitted and impacted the 
referred clients in a significant way by improving communication between SAVH 
and professionals at SNEC, thereby resulting in a better understanding of their 
existing condition and needs.

In FY 2014/15, a total of 61 persons were referred to SAVH through the Satellite Low 
Vision Clinic service. The top three causes of vision impairment in these cases were 
Glaucoma (22 %), Retinitis Pigmentosa (18 %) and Diabetic Retinopathy (11 %).

Causes of Vision Impairment in New Referrals at Satellite Low Vision Clinic

Diagnosis Number of Cases %

Glaucoma 14 22

Retinitis Pigmentosa 11 18

Diabetic Retinopathy 7 11

Age Related Macular Degeneration 7 11

Bilateral Optic Atrophy 6 10

Myopic Degeneration 3 5

Cone Rod Dystrophy 3 5

Macular Atrophy 2 3

Myopic Choroidal Neovascularisation 1 2

Polypoidal Choroidal Vasculopathy 1 2

Retinopathy of Prematurity 1 2

Leber Hereditary Optic Neuropathy 2 3

Myopia Maculopathy 1 2

Stargart's Disease 1 2

PACG 1 2

Total 61 100
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SKILLS DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

The Skills Development Programme at the SAVH aspires to equip the blind and 
low-vision with skills and knowledge so that they are employable and accepted 
by the mainstream society. It works with schools, various corporate and public 
institutions as platforms to generate public awareness of the competencies of 
the visually handicapped, hence fulfilling their basic needs in the form of a stable 
source of income, and derived in-coming funds for the association.

SDP placed emphasis on four strategic areas:-
l Skills Development
l IT User Support Group
l Job Placement
l Social Business

Skills Development

The following table shows the breakdown of courses conducted from 1 April 
2014 to 31 March 2015

Course No of clients enrolled
IT Skills
Blind IT User Support Group 28
Health
WSQ Basic Chinese Massage 14
WSQ Full Body Massage without oil
Seated Chair Massage 5
Music
Musical Keyboard 16
Guitar 5
Ocarina 4
Piano 3
Percussion 3
Singing 2
Band Mentorship Program 10
Price Negotiation Workshop 3
Kano Methods for Customer Service 1
Others
Story Telling Workshop 14
Glowing in the Dark Workshop 6
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Blind IT User Support Group

The Blind IT User Support Group is a programme established to provide IT-related 
training and support to visually impaired clients of SAVH.
The services of the programme include:

l  Training for visually impaired clients in computer, mobile phones and related 
assistive technology, including Macs and iPhones

l Technical or troubleshooting support for problems with PCs
l Home and office visits to provide training or technical support to clients
l Providing user and troubleshooting support over the phone to clients
l E-newsletter on IT-related news, events, and topics of interest to the clients 

of SAVH

Over the past year, we have 74 clients, including 40 new clients, who received 
training in 66 topics. The programme has also taken 174 calls to answer questions 
relating to IT in general and assistive technology in particular. We also have a special 
IT volunteer, Mr Dev Sharma, who has been providing computer repair services to 
clients. 14 clients have benefited from his services this year.

The programme has a small group of volunteers who provide invaluable assistance 
in training, technical / troubleshooting and general areas. We continue to seek 
suitable volunteers to play various roles in the programme, including those who 
can be trained to become trainers themselves, who can then help train our clients in 
the use of blind-friendly technology, to help the blind community keep up with the 
rest of society in this information age.

We also continue to have the opportunity to take part in the development of 
smartphone apps and devices to help the visually impaired, thanks to various 
individuals, organizations and institutes of learning, and continue to welcome more 
such parties to approach us for similar ventures.

As a result of the existence of this programme, numerous visitors to SAVH have 
been enlightened through on-the-spot demonstrations on how blind people are 
also able to access IT. Over the past year, more than 800 visitors have been given 
demonstrations on assistive technology for the visually impaired. This is important 
in promoting public awareness of the abilities of and technology options available 
for the blind, which will go towards enhancing public perception and employability 
of the blind and visually impaired. 

We thank our funders, clients, volunteers and community partners for their support 
over the past year, and hope to receive their continued support as the programme 
continues to grow and develop.
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Music Skills Training for Visually Handicapped

Faith Music Centre works with SAVH to impart visually impaired clients with music 
skills, and through collaboration with organizations as a part of Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) to bring the beauty of song and fun activities for the residents in 
aged and children homes in Singapore.

Objective

The music endeavour was started in late 2010 with the objectives of:

1. Equipping music proficiencies to visually handicapped clients so that they are 
able to contribute to the society by sharing the joy of music to residents in aged 
and children homes;  

2. Having a source of income & allowances for their music works; 
 
Faith Music Centre first started with keyboard course in 2010 and now offers a full 
band music courses that includes Drum, Guitar (Acoustic), Bass Guitar Vocal and 
Piano to its clients.

Visually Impaired Music Learners’ contribution to the society.

Visually impaired music learners are now performing in old age homes alongside 
Faith Music Centre’s able-bodied music learners, as a contribution to the society. 
In addition to sharing the joy of music in old age homes and supporting SAVH’s 
fundraising endeavors, and the first visually impaired band, VIB has been paid for 
their music performances.  

Supporting SAVH Fundraising Endeavors 

Faith Music Centre has actively been involved in SAVH events: White Cane Day, 
Courage Walk, Fundraising Performance with Hwa Chong Institute at Mandarin 
Orchard to name a few. Faith Music Centre also led the first visually impaired band, 
VIB to represent SAVH through “A Nation in Concert 2014”, a fund raising musical 
held at the Sands Theatre, Marina Bays Sands.

 The musical on 8th November 2014, with a matinee and an evening performance 
took more than 6 months to prepare. On the day of performance, VIB put up the 
timeless mandarin classic by Teresa Teng, “月亮代表我的心” to a capacity crowd 
of 2,300. Casts for the musical included TV celebrities and persons with disabilities 
from SAVH, SA Deaf, Handicapped Welfare Association.
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Staff Recruitment

Ken Wong and Lydia Khit, clients registered with SAVH were recruited by Faith 
Music Centre to provide music instructions to public, corporations and persons with 
disabilities. They have been equipped with music qualifications certified by Faith 
Music Centre. 

Job Placement

In FY2014/2015 a total of 58 clients were placed for gainful employment.

Social Business

Breakdown of Revenue Generated by Social Business Unit

Social Business Unit’s 
Programmes

Income Generated 
in FY2014/2015

Income Generated 
in FY2013/2014

Mobile Massage Team $560,235 $435,278

Touch Art $29,081 $29,868

Dining in the Dark $149,255 $136,570

Total $738,571 $601,716

l Mobile Massage Team (MMT)

The Mobile Massage Team or MMT has been in operation since 1992. As of 31 March 
2015, MMT has a crew of 43 qualified, visually handicapped masseurs (6 are Adhoc 
Masseurs) who through the use of their highly qualified hands and professionalism 
provide massage services such as head and shoulder massage, foot reflexology and 
full body non-oil massage at SAVH’s massage centre or at corporate offices, schools, 
community centers, government offices and statutory board.

All our masseurs are fully qualified and have the necessary certifications that are 
accredited in accordance with the Singapore Workforce skills Qualifications system. 
We will continue relentlessly to upgrade our training program to further enhance 
their skills under our Skills Development Programme.

Over the years, our popular MMT has not only built a pool of satisfied loyal corporate 
customers, who make regular requests for our massage services and we were always 
being complimented and praised by our customers for our masseurs’ charisma, 
integrity and professionalism of our services.
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In 2014, there were bookings from an average of more than 20 regular customers 
per month. They are:

Airbnb Singapore
Ajunied Community Centre
Anderson Junior College
Changi General Hospital
Children Cancer Foundation
Comfort Delgro Loyang
Coral Ris RC (Pasir Ris Zone 5)
Dr. Jerry Tan
Facebook
Intertek Testing Singapore Pte Ltd
Japanese Association
KTP Consultants Pte Ltd
Linkedin Singapore Pte Ltd
LSI Logic Singapore Pte Ltd
Oiltanking Singapore Ltd
PriceWaterHouseCoopers Services LLP
Rosyth School
Salesforce.com Singapore Pte Ltd
SAP Asia 
Singapore American School
Singapore National Eye Center
Turf Club – Kranji 
Disco Hi-Tec

In addition to the regular corporate customers, corporate customers also call upon 
us to provide massage services on an adhoc basis.

In FY2014/2015, the total revenue generated by MMT amounted to $700,294 after 
deducting the 20% for administration fee is $560,235.

The table below shows the number of customers that MMT served from 1 April 2014 
till 31 March 2015.

CORPORATE WALK-IN (INDIVIDUAL) TOTAL

1,448 2,164 3,612
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l Touch Art Programme

Touch Art Programmes represents a channel by which visually handicapped 
clients build up confidence through engagement in a form of employment in the 
manufacturing of handicrafts. It is during such sessions that these abled persons 
get the chance to venture out of their homes for social interaction, thereby building 
faith and self-worth. 

Clients have enjoyed these sessions, as it is also a way for them to express their 
creativity and artistic talent.  The number of clients who are registered in this 
workshop have increased to a total of 25, an increase of about 1% from 22 last year. 
Through the acquiring of skills associated with the sense of touch, many innovative 
and original items are aesthetically crafted.

Through the public and corporate sales of these manufactured items during various 
carnivals and events, part of the proceeds provided the basic needs of our clients. 
This programme is currently under the mentorship of our dedicated veteran, Ms 
Katy Lim.

SAVH has undertaken numerous projects, such as Rainbow In The Dark. These 
initiatives provide a platform to showcase the abilities of the visibility-impaired, to 
heighten public awareness of the importance of the creation of an inclusive society. 
 
Together with the faithful devotion of a group of qualified volunteers, the Touch Art 
programme is a resounding success as it generated a total of $29,081 for SAVH. We 
convey our heartfelt appreciation to the commitment and patience of the volunteers 
in working with our clients.

Touch Art items were sold to organisations including:-

l Chinatown Social Enterprise
l Singapore Health Services Pte Ltd
l Junyuan Secondary School
l Island Landscape & Nursery Pte ltd
l National Council of Social Service
l Intellectual Property Office of Singapore 

(IPOS)
l IBM
l MVCI Asia Pacific Pte Ltd
l Singapore Press Holdings Limited
l Citi-YMCA Project
l Ministry of Education
l ITE West

l Ricoh Asia Pacific Pte Ltd
l Nirvana Memorial Garden Pte Ltd
l Credit Suisse
l Energizer Singapore
l Singleton
l Ministry of Social and Family 

Development
l Institute of Singapore Chartered 

Accountants (ISCA)
l	Workforce Development Agency
l	Advantest (S) Pte Ltd
l	Singapore General Hospital
l	Bartley Secondary School
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l Dining In the Dark Programme

The Dining in the Dark (DITD) Programme serves to raise public awareness of 
the challenges the visually impaired face in their daily activities. The Programme 
also aims to raise funds and create long employment opportunities for the 
visually impaired. Under the Programme, diners will experience the sensation 
and challenges of dining in a pitched dark room 

For FY2014/2015, the total income generated by DITD was $149,255. A total of 
4383 diners patronized DITD. These attendees included company employees, 
staff and students of schools and other educational institutions, as well as 
individuals. The Programme has ventured actively on outdoor engagement to 
companies, schools and community clubs with total of 600 diners. 

The Programme has welcomed 2 visually impaired servers and 1 visually impaired 
kitchen helper.

l	VCT Group of Wineries Asia Pte Ltd
l	Deutsche Bank
l	Energy Pipeline Services Pte Ltd
l	Epcos Pte Ltd

l	Raffles Institution
l	Goldman Sachs
l	DBS
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ACCESSIBILITY PROGRAMME

The Accessibility Programme seeks to assist the visually handicapped lead 
independent lives through the:

l Introduction of assistive  l Teaching and use of Braille 
 devices and technology l Loan of audio and Braille books

This is a program partially funded by the government, in an effort to provide holistic 
support to the community and in recognition of individuals with special needs.

Assistive Device Centre

The Assistive Device Centre (ADC) aims to assist the visually handicapped in 
leading an independent and enriching life so as to encourage integration into 
mainstream education and employment through promoting the use of assistive 
devices and technologies. We offer a comprehensive range of devices such 
as mobility white canes, audible liquid indicators, talking devices e.g. clocks, 
watches, calculators and blood pressure monitor/Gluco meters.

ADC also assists visually handicapped persons to purchase high-end assistive 
devices, such as screen readers/scanning and reading solutions, magnification 
software’s, multi-functional players and braille note takers which enable clients 
to gain equal access to information and IT needs.

The Centre also sells prescribed and patented optical and electronic magnifiers. 
These magnifiers come with different levels of magnification and forms. For 
example, the magnifier may be collapsible or handheld, with LED lighting while 
the electronic magnifiers may be either portable or desktop units.

Besides catering to SAVH clients, ADC also received numerous third-party 
enquiries and purchase requests from patients in eye clinics and local hospitals. 

Operational Results of ADC FY2014/15

Items FY2013/14 FY2014/15

Sales $117,925.80 $197,258.40

Number of Items Purchased by Clients 3279 2711

Number of Clients Served 717 894

Number of Enquiries 917 251

Amount of Subsidy Dispensed $5149.10 $7331.24
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During FY2014/15, a total of 121 financially needy clients benefitted from the 
Means Testing Scheme when purchasing assistive devices such as white canes and 
handheld magnifiers.

With the recent announcement from our Deputy Prime Minister and Finance Minister 
Mr Tharman Shanmugaratnam of the government’s initiative in its enhancement of 
the MSF’s Assistive Technology fund to encourage the adoption and use of assistive 
technologies, ADC will continue to collaborate with venders round the world in 
bringing and showcasing varieties of more innovative products for the benefit and 
wellbeing of our clients.

Braille Production Unit (BPU)

For the year under review, the Braille Production Unit received a total of 912 
transcription requests from our Braille users, including 8 students from Ahmad 
Ibrahim Secondary School and Bedok South Secondary School, as well as many 
external parties who were interested to provide information in Braille. These 
requests translated into a total of 47,527 sheets of Braille text and 9788 pages of 
tactile diagrams.

BPU continued to produce Braille signage for private housing developments and 
embossed name-cards for several government agencies.

The above output generated an income of S$60,097.90 while the National Council 
of Social Service (NCSS) continued to fund part of the Unit’s operating costs.

They donated in 2013, and they did it again in March this year! Our Ladies from 
the Inner Wheel Club of Singapore raised a total of S$15,000.00 for BPU to upgrade 
our reading and scanning software packages, acquire more Braille Display Units and 
buy laptops and other peripherals to enhance our production arsenal. “Thank you 
very much, Ladies!”

We wish to thank our regular pool of about 30 volunteers, who come in week after 
week, to offer their valuable time and expertise in the production of the labor-
intensive tactile diagrams as well as the scanning and editing of materials for 
conversion into Braille.



34 SAVH Annual Report 2014/15

Library

The SAVH Library is opened to all vision impaired persons residing in Singapore. It is 
a free lending service.

Members can visit the library to select their books or to have the books sent to their 
home by post. Postage is free for the mailing of library materials for the blind.

For the year under review, the Library registered 9 new members but lost 4 members 
due to severe illness.

There were 139 members who used the services regularly, and the total loans came 
up to 3932.

The comparatives are as follows:

Library FY2014/15 FY2013/14
Number of Clients Served 139 133
Number of Items Loaned 3,932 3,783

The library’s collection of audio books in English and descriptive movies have been 
growing steadily. Unfortunately the library’s collection of audio materials in Chinese 
has been limited by availability in bookstores.

This is the third successive year wherein the in-house production of Mandarin 
periodicals and Infomag News has been digitally recorded. Members can access 
these podcasts via Dropbox or the use of flash drives.

Heartfelt thanks to the hard work of these volunteers who made this possible.

We are also grateful to NCSS for funding part of the Library’s operating costs thus 
enabling the Library to continue its efforts in meeting the reading needs of the 
vision impaired community.
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ADVOCACY

ROLE OF THE ADVOCACY SUB-COMMITTEE

The special needs of the visually handicapped are undertaken by the Advocacy 
Sub-Committee, which strives to highlight the challenges faced by the visually 
handicapped and champion their rights to better accessibility.

ACTIVITIES

During the period under review, the Sub-committee continued to engage with the 
relevant authorities with the feedback gathered from the accessibility dialogue 
session.  One of which was to feedback to the SMRT on the issues faced by the visually 
handicapped when using the train system.  We were grateful that they would be 
implementing some of our comments and feedbacks in due course.

The Sub-committee met up with representatives of Tiger Airways to discuss visually 
handicapped travelling on their airline.  We were able to come to an amicable 
arrangement to allow visually handicapped to travel on their own on Tiger Airways.

We visited the Yishun Temporary Interchange to get first-hand knowledge of the 
accessibility provision at the interchange.  The layout was well thought of and it 
made it easy for a visually handicapped person to navigate from the alighting bay to 
the various shuttle and trunk bus services.  This collaboration between us and SMRT 
buses is a very good example of co-operation in building accessible amenities in our 
community.

As we continue our efforts to work towards a barrier-free environment and meeting 
the needs of the visually handicapped in accessing technologies in the Information 
Technology arena, we will be looking forward to work with the banks to provide 
accessible ATMs and banking facilities that are essential in our daily lives.

Moving on, the Sub-committee is committed to work with the relevant authorities 
to ensure that attention is paid to the needs of the visually handicapped in our 
community.  To this end, we hope we can achieve satisfactory results in building a 
fair and inclusive society in Singapore.
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FUNDRAISING

Despite not having a full time Fundraising Manager and the high turnover of staff 
in the Fundraising/Public Relations/Volunteer Management Department, we had 
successfully organized quite a number of fundraising events.

Our major fundraising events held during the financial year were as follows:

EVENTS PERIOD GROSS FUNDS RAISED
‘You are My Eyes’ Concert 13 May 14 $20,000.00
Toyota Camry Charity Golf 2014 30 Jul 14 $50,000.00
Flag Day 2014 10 Sep 14 $289,705.88
‘Love’ Charity Concert 18 Oct 14 $61,841.50
SAVH Donation Tickets Draw 2014 1 Mar - 18 Oct 14 $356,578.42
‘A Nation In Concert 2014’ 8 Nov 14 $27,743.75
SAVH Charity Banquet 2015 17 Mar 15 $745,178.99
Building  & Construction Authority 
Annual Dinner Donation 20 Mar 15 $55,000.00

We wish to thank all donors, sponsors, EXCO members and staff who have helped in 
our fundraising efforts, particularly in our Charity Banquet.

Great appreciation and special thanks must go to our Deputy Prime Minister and 
Minister for Finance, Mr Tharman Shanmugaratnam for gracing the 2015 Charity 
Banquet held on 17 Mar 15 at Orchard Mandarin Hotel as our Guest-of-Honour; Mr 
Hri Kumar Nair, Member of Parliament for Bishan-Toa Payoh GRC, Chairman of the 
Government Parliamentary Committee for Home Affairs and Law as Guest-of-Honour 
for the ‘Rainbow In The Dark’ Exhibition held on 15 Jan 15 at *SCAPE.

In addition, we would also like to thank Mr Keith Sim for organising the ‘You are My 
Eyes’ Concert; Inchcape for organizing the ‘Toyota Camry Charity Golf 2014’; Ms JT 
Tan and Ms Angela See who organised the ‘Love’ Charity Concert and chose us as the 
solely beneficiary and Mr Jerry Siah who organised the ‘A Nation In Concert 2014’ and 
picked us as one of the beneficiaries. Last but not least, we must thank the generosity 
of Mdm Lee Ying and the Building & Construction Authority for their kind donations.
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The following were the major donors for this financial year:

l	Mdm Lee Ying
l	Tote Board
l	President’s Challenge
l	Lee Foundation
l	Building & Construction Authority
l	New Creation Church
l	Mr Simon Tay
l	Estate of Henry Bolter
l	Wee Aik Koon Pte Ltd
l	HSBC Insurance Singapore Pte Ltd
l	SymAsia Singapore Fund
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PUBLIC RELATIONS & VOLUNTEER

Public Relations

Public education and outreach activities are continual efforts by SAVH to engage the 
public and build awareness while generating interest in the Association’s services and 
activities along with educating the general public on vision impairment.

For FY2014/15, SAVH leveraged on its website and Facebook to engage the public 
and generate a buzz for its major events and signature activities, particularly its 63rd 
Anniversary Charity Banquet, the Little Prince (Touch & See): An exceptional exhibition 
and its inaugural ‘Rainbow in the Dark’ (RITD)@scape.

In tandem with these show-stoppers, SAVH was extremely proud to collaborate with 
the likes of statutory boards, grass root organizations and established corporations 
and institutions of higher learning in a bid to make ourselves more visible at the grass 
root and community levels.

In collaboration with Intellectual Property Organization of Singapore (IPOS), Springleaf-
Nee Soon Residents Committee and Raffles Institution, we were honored to partake 
in World IP Day, Singapore Kindness Movement and Youth Got Heart respectively. 
These unique opportunities enabled us as an association to create a deeper synergy 
in forging a nationalistic identity through community involvement.

SAVH jointly promoted its activities and events through other organizations’ online 
portals such as Livenabled FB and SG Cares bulletin board.

Besides engaging social media, SAVH also tapped on its biannual newsletter ‘Insight’, 
Annual Report as well as upgraded and improved corporate brochures and in-house 
collaterals to reach out to the public in an effort to fire up their imagination and passion.

SAVH featured largely in the media-eye owing to a number of television broadcasts. 
On 25 November 2014, we were featured in a MediaCorp Channel 8 production 
entitled ‘Tuesday Reporting’, featuring our client Rosie Wong.

We are also slated to appear on ‘Get Social’, a children’s reality series debuting during 
prime time on Okto Channel later this year.

SAVH has also successfully staged through various sponsored partnerships no less 
than three musical concerts this fiscal year, with two more in the pipeline. These were 
namely ‘A Nation in Concert’ (ANIC), staged at Sands Theatre, Love Charity Concert 
held at Kreta Ayer People’s Theatre and we are planning an encore Charity Qin Huai 
Concert scheduled for January next year.
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Moreover we were delighted to host the members of Inner Wheel Club Singapore 
(IWCS) (District 331) in an effort to show our heartfelt appreciation for their on-going 
generosity over the years. Through their donations-in-kind amounting to just under 
$15,000, Braille Production Unit was able to upgrade their equipment, thus enhancing 
their existing infrastructure to better service our clients.

Earlier this year we were honored to be invited to attend Springleaf Community 
Day held in conjunction with The Singapore Kindness Movement on January 25 
at Springleaf Nature Park. The Special GOH on this occasion was our esteemed  
PM Lee Hsien Loong. Our clients who performed with characteristic flair at this one-of-
a-kind event were familiar faces Robert Tan and Steven Yeo. The PM made an especial 
pit-stop at Steven’s area to shake his hand and congratulate him on a job well done. 
Also present was MP for Nee Soon GRC, Er. Dr. Lee Bee Wah.

Another singular feather in our cap was our biennial Charity Banquet which we 
proudly hosted at Mandarin Orchard in mid-March this year. We were especially 
honored to boast DPM Tharman Shanmugaratnam as our esteemed GOH. He took 
the opportunity to speak at length about enhancements to his Assistive Technology 
Fund, wherein a larger segment of the disabled populace would be able to benefit 
from assistive devices in their daily lives.

SAVH President Phillip Lee in his keynote address also stressed the need to ignite the 
fires of public service in the bosom of all potential volunteers, eloquently urging them 
to take up the gauntlet to serve the less fortunate; this, he asseverated, is unequivocally 
an earmark of any enlightened society.

As a collective impact, these manifold initiatives thrust SAVH into the forefront of 
the public eye, serving as an effective platform to build awareness to the plight of 
the blind.

During the first quarter of 2015, SAVH’S Public Relations arm worked tirelessly in 
championing the needs of the visually impaired through a multitude of outreach 
initiatives, both in the private and public sectors. In so doing we were able to strike 
at the heart and core of our society, making it possible to chalk up our number 
of stoic and well-meaning volunteers, many of whom stem from the younger 
generation.

SAVH has also opened its doors to several institutes of open learning and tertiary 
education, in an effort to engage and attract youth in volunteering from an early age 
and build empathy for the less fortunate, through interaction with clients particularly 
our sheltered workshop trainees whom have left indelible and heart-wrenching 
memories in the collective psyche of our most hardened volunteers.
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In addition to all that has been detailed above, below are some further acknowledgements 
to those parties who have contributed to our cause in significant ways. Each and every 
last one of them has made a sizable impact on our SAVH landscape either through 
fundraising, heightening awareness as to the multi-talents and accomplishments of 
our VH community or both.

l	Nutrition and the eye coffee table book sales raised $53,000 – credit goes to Dr. 
Jerry Tan and Dr. Por Yong Ming.

l	This year Blind Courage Walk was conducted within MacRitchie reservoir, making 
for a novel and refreshing change, and registering a record number of volunteers 
and clients alike.

l	Singapore Pools in a bid to enrich community life has come on-board to help in 
the sale of our yearly charity donation draw ticket booklets. This has proved an 
added boon owing to the larger volume of tickets to offload.

Last but not least, we would like to highlight a few key PR ventures during FY2014/15.

2014
24 July  StarHub open golf tournament
3 August  Beauty with a Heart event in collaboration with Miss Singapore 2014 

Beauty Pageant
30 August  AGM (61st) with a quorum of 71 members. 
10 September SAVH Island wide Flag Day
20 September  13th Annual Zetland-SAVH Jubilation Scrabble competition
21 September  Amara Hotel ERM Marketing Pte Ltd
28 September  Singapore Art Museum Braille Workshop
11 October Khoo Teck Puat Age-Related Macular Degeneration Awareness Drive 
18 October  White Cane Day with Sennheiser Corporate Volunteers culminating 

in Donation Draw 2014
 Love Charity Concert at Kreta Ayer People’s Theatre
26 October  Singleton Golf Fellowship Event
8 November  A Nation in Concert, A Wetlands Adventure
 YOUths Care @PAYM GOH Dr. Lily Neo, MP for Kreta Ayer-Kim Seng 

Ward
15 November  Purple Parade at Hong Lim Park 
 World Diabetes Day @KTP Hospital
28 November  CSR with Credit Suisse
30 November  Phoenix Contact Vision Walk at Bishan Park 2
5 December  International Volunteers’ Day 
7 December  Fundraising Marathon by Standard Chartered Bank
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2015
12 - 15 January  Occupational Therapists’ Day held at Tan Tock Seng Hospital
15 – 18 January  RITD @Scape sponsored by National Arts Council
25 January  SG Care & Share Day @ Kallang Wave Mall
 Springleaf Community Day (A Singapore Kindness Movement 

campaign)
17 March  63rd Charity Banquet at Mandarin Orchard Singapore

Volunteers

Volunteers are an integral part of SAVH. In FY2014/15, 120 individuals signed up 
as volunteers with SAVH. Several schools and interested public contacted SAVH to 
perform voluntary service for the Association.

Special mention goes to Singapore American School for organizing the Pulau Ubin 
sensory trail excursions, Raffles Institution for Youth Got Heart campaign and SOTA 
for building awareness through drama.

We are especially grateful to the staff and pupils of Canberra Primary School for 
their due diligence and fervor in raising substantial funds through their own internal 
enterprise. This is definitely a shining example of values-in-action accorded by any 
one school.

We are also immensely grateful to Endeavour Primary and Chung Cheng High Schools 
for their espirit de corp in volunteering to sell donation draw tickets and thus support 
the VH community and the community at large.

In addition we would like to acknowledge the commendable efforts manifested by 
Raffles Institution Team Art for Colour in a bid to showcase their entrepreneurial skills 
during the Citi-YMCA Program.

All in their respective capacities have been instrumental in helping to shape the 
landscape insofar as building awareness amongst the younger generation, and 
serving as one Singapore.

Thanks to their collective volunteering efforts and fundraising endeavors, the benefits 
have been twofold; profitable and meaningful for us and character building for them.
For instance the trainees at the sheltered workshop and many of SAVH’s client pool 
have been befriended by said volunteers over a period of time, through Touch Art 
gallery, outings and other social events.

In addition BPU and Library have seen a steady stream of long-serving and regular 
volunteers pass through their portals. These worthy individuals have selflessly given  
back despite hectic personal schedules.
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Thanks to the hard work, commitment and dedication of all our volunteers, regular and 
adhoc, SAVH is able to continue to engage our clients through stimulating programs, 
workshops and excursions, by providing them with assorted avenues of exploring 
and utilising their residual vision.

For the immobile, elderly and economically straitened, a kind word, a listening ear 
and friendly disposition go a long way toward making a difference in a world bereft 
of sight. Apart from our worthy staff, our volunteers are our next great resource and 
the backbone to any VWO worth its salt.
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WHITE CANE CLUB       
 
  
Preamble
         
The White Cane Club (WCC) serves as a feedback organ of SAVH on matters relating 
to visually handicapped persons, organizes social, educational and recreational 
activities for its members and provides leadership training.     
     
48th Annual General Meeting         
 
The 48th Annual General Meeting of the White Cane Club was held on Saturday, 
19th July 2014 at 3:10PM at the Lighthouse School Hall. 18 members attended the 
meeting. There were five nominations, namely Ms Pang Siew Gek, Mr Goh Yiu Huat, 
Ms Toh Ling Ling Carolyn, Mr Lim Tze Seng and Mdm Rohani Bte Ibrahim.
         
Main Committee FY2013/14

Name Position

Mr Goh Yiu Huat Chairman

Mr Rajkumar s/o Muthukumar Vice Chairman

Mr Lau Chin Hee, Andrew Honorary Secretary

Mr Tay Shaw Ming, Francis Hon Treasurer

Mdm Ng Swee Kuen Chairperson, Activity Organizing Committee

Mdm Rohani Bte Ibrahim Member

Mr Lim Tze Seng Member

Ms Toh Ling Ling, Carolyn Member

Ms Pang Siew Gek Member

Objectives
        
The key objectives of the White Cane Club are:       
   
1. To complement the Association in providing for the educational, social and 

recreational needs of visually handicapped members     
     

2. To contribute constructive recommendations to the Association for the 
enhancement of welfare of visually handicapped members.    
      

3.         To assist the Association in identifying and nurturing potential leaders for the 
Club and the Association.         
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Membership          

There were 21 new members for the year under review.  6 members were reinstated. 
3 members passed away, namely Ms Ng Meng Mui, Mdm Goh Swee Chin and Mdm 
Tan Siam Teow. 23 members were in arrears. As at 31st March 2015, the membership 
strength stood at 127, an increase of 1 over the previous year. 
  
Conclusion
    
In the past one year, WCC was able to plan an activity monthly. The members 
supported our activities while our dedicated volunteers offered their time and 
invaluable services.

We would like to express our heartfelt gratitude to both our members and volunteers 
for being willing to pay to join the activities. Besides the fun and enjoyment, our 
members and volunteers also participated in the Flag Day and sale of the donation 
draw tickets.

On the whole, WCC had an eventful and successful year.

Prepared by          
Lau Chin Hee, Andrew          
Hon Secretary, WCC
          
White Cane Club Activities 2013/14

Activities Date VH members Volunteers
Hi Tea session 19 Apr 2014 28 16
Durian tasting session 26 July 2014 21 11
Annual Dinner Function 29 Nov 2014 43 43
Local Farm Visit 17 Jan 2015 20 10
Cookery Class 31 Jan 2015 11 12
CNY Event 28 Feb 2015 54 18
2D/1N Batam Tour 28-29 Mar 2015 22 8

Farms tour 17 January 2015

The one day farm tour took the group to visit the goat farm, the tomato farm and the 
wheat grass farm. 20 visually handicapped and 10 volunteers were rather sentimental 
as most of the farms in Singapore would be relocated. The participants learned 
something from the visit to the farms. They enjoyed the shopping for food products. 
In spite of the warm weather, the participants were happy and contented.   
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Lunar New Year 28 Feb 2015
         
The event attracted 54 visually handicapped and 18 volunteers. Unlike the previous 
year, the event was held at the air conditioned Lighthouse School hall. The function 
was mostly sponsored by our donors. There was food, Yu Sheng, songs, games, 
cheer and laughter. Each visually handicapped was given a red packet while every 
participant was presented with two oranges for good health and prosperity. On the 
whole, everybody enjoyed the time together.
     
Batam Trip 28th and 29th March 2015
         
22 Visually handicapped and 8 volunteers went on a 2D/1N Batam trip on 28 and 
29 March 2015. The group enjoyed the shopping and the hotel stay. The volunteers 
had a heavy responsibility as the visually handicapped and volunteer ratio was 3 
to 1. There was laughter and jokes on board the tour bus. Some of the participants 
had the opportunity to try the Indonesian traditional massage. The group visited 
the Barelang Bridge which linked and connected Batam with 5 other islands. The 
participants bought so much so that they had difficulty carrying their purchases.

Some of the participants expressed the wish that the club could plan another Batam 
trip next year.

Victory Family Service Centre Activities 

Activities Date VH members
Afternoon Gathering session 21 Jun 2014 20
Afternoon Gathering session 01 Nov 2014 18
Lunch session 07 Mar 2015 20

Hair Cut Sessions 
         
An average of 15 WCC members attended each session.

Schedule: 4 May 2014, 6 July 2014, 7 September 2014, 2 November 2014, 4 January 
2015 and 8 February 2015.

We would like to express our thanks and gratitude to our volunteer hair-dressers, 
namely, Ms Toh, Yvonne and Ms Mak, Susan for the above hair-cut sessions. The Club 
also presented tokens of appreciation to them for their voluntary service.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
SINGAPORE ASSOCIATION OF THE VISUALLY HANDICAPPED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Association of the Visually
Handicapped (the "Association")which comprise the statement of financialposition of the Association
as at 31 March 2015, the statement of financial activities, statement of changes in fund and statement
of cash flows for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, as set out on pages 4 to 42. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Executive Committee's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Charities Act, Cap 37, the Societies Act Cap 311 and Singapore
Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting
controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from
unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded as
necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair statement of financial position and statement of
financial activities and to maintain accountability of assets. 

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

ROBIN CHIA & CO.
Chartered Accountants 

60 Tessensohn Road
Civil Service Club, #02-1A

Singapore 217664
Tel: (65) 6324 3998
Fax: (65) 6324 8326

www.rccmgroup.com

2

out on pages 53 to 91.
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SINGAPORE ASSOCIATION OF THE VISUALLY HANDICAPPED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2015

(In Singapore Dollars)
Note        2015        2014

       $       $
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 130,249         141,305
Financial assets, available-for-sale 5 1,000             1,000
Total non-current assets 131,249         142,305

Current assets
Other receivables                                 6 349,056         953,331
Cash and cash equivalents                                         7 7,247,769      5,455,721
Inventories 8 41,782           99,702
Total current assets 7,638,607      6,508,754

TOTAL ASSETS 7,769,856      6,651,059

FUNDS AND LIABILITY
Funds
Accumulated Funds 6,006,667      4,734,157
Building Fund 9 1,072,344      1,072,344
Care and Share Fund 10 195,907         -
Community Project Fund 11 20,866           20,866
Designated Donation Fund 12 886,984         895,010
Donated Assets Capitalisation Fund 13 74,163           98,932
Mobile Massage Fund 14 79,112           74,126
President's Challenge Fund 15 1,591             1,591
Scholarship and Training Reserve Fund 16 23,816           23,816
Staff Welfare Fund 17 1,286             1,286
Tan Chay Bing Education Fund 18 50,100           57,900
The Estate of Renee Chew Fund 19 19,564           19,564
Credit Suisse Tuition Subsidy Scheme Fund 20 4,900             9,300
White Cane Club Project Fund 21 17,250           24,382
Braille Production Unit Programme Fund 22 (206,004)        (87,722)
Library Programme Fund 23 (43,077)          (22,593)
Low Vision Clinic Programme Fund 24 (316,169)        (275,351)
Vision Rehabilitation Programme Fund 25 (271,235)        (148,653)
Total funds 7,618,065      6,498,955

Current liability
Other payables                                      26 151,791         152,104

TOTAL FUNDS AND LIABILITY 7,769,856      6,651,059

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements
4
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SINGAPORE ASSOCIATION OF THE VISUALLY HANDICAPPED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2015

(In Singapore Dollars)
Note        2015        2014

       $        $
Incoming resources 
Amortisation of donated assets 13 24,769           27,194
Community project income 3,200             4,800
Donations 27 572,723         605,980
Facilities 3,600             5,480
Fund raising 28 1,511,322      1,011,945
Grants and fundings 29 840,558         541,021
Membership fees 2,170             1,183
Miscellaneous income 30 10,540           318,113
Other income 31 205,685         104,134
Programme fees 4,980             6,992
Sales 32 1,186,209      946,832
Total income resources 4,365,756      3,573,674

Resources expended
Charitable activities 33 2,850,607      2,596,963
Fund raising expenses 28 82,342           61,189
Other operating and administrative expenses 34 438,928         414,314
Total resources expended 3,371,877      3,072,466

Surplus for the year 993,879         501,208
Add/ (Less): Transfer from/ (to)
Braille Production Unit Programme Fund 118,282         31,241
Care and Share Fund (195,907)        -
Centre for Enabled Living Seed Fund -                     32,852
Designated Donation Fund 158,026         (63,981)
Library Programme Fund 20,484           50,336
Low Vision Clinic Programme Fund 40,818           27,362
Mobile Massage Fund (4,986)            (27,748)
President's Challenge Fund -                     298,451
Staff Welfare Fund -                     (500)
Tan Chay Bing Education Fund 7,800             42,200
The Estate of Renee Chew Fund -                     2,086
Credit Suisse Tuition Subsidy Scheme Fund 4,400             3,600
Vision Rehabilitation Programme Fund 122,582         107,393
White Cane Club Project Fund 7,132             (9,975)

278,631         493,317

Net surplus transfer to Accumulated Funds 1,272,510      994,525

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements
5
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SINGAPORE ASSOCIATION OF THE VISUALLY HANDICAPPED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ACCUMULATED FUND
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2015

(In Singapore Dollars)
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at beginning of financial year 4,734,157      3,714,384
Net surplus for the financial year 1,272,510      994,525
Less: Transfer of funds

Building Fund -                     23,300
Centre for Enabled Living Seed Fund -                     1,948

Balance at end of financial year 6,006,667      4,734,157

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements
6
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SINGAPORE ASSOCIATION OF THE VISUALLY HANDICAPPED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2015

(In Singapore Dollars)
Note        2015        2014

       $        $
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Surplus for the financial year 1,272,510      994,525
Adjustments for:
  Amortisation of donated assets (24,769)          (27,194)
  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 40,593           37,025
  Bad debts written off 1,168             -
  Provision for inventories obsolescence 65,185           -
  Loss on disposal of plant and equipment 27                  2
  Dividend income (276)               (414)
  Interest income (33,053)          (14,634)
Operating surplus before working capital changes 1,321,385      989,310
  Inventory (7,265)            (2,852)
  Other receivables 603,107         (506,179)
  Other payables (313)               (37,280)
Cash generated from operations 1,916,914      442,999
  Dividend received 276                414
  Interest received 33,053           14,634
Cash generated from operating activities 1,950,243      458,047

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
  Purchase of property, plant and equipment (29,564)          (24,999)
Cash used in investing activities (29,564)          (24,999)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
  Net funds (decreased)/ increased during the year (128,631)        476,708
Cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities (128,631)        476,708

.
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,792,048      909,756
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 5,455,721      4,545,965
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 7 7,247,769      5,455,721

The accounting policies and explanatory notes form an integral part of the financial statements
7
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SINGAPORE ASSOCIATION OF THE VISUALLY HANDICAPPED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

1. GENERAL

The objectives of the Association are: -

a) to serve as an Association for the visually handicapped;
b) to promote the welfare of the visually handicapped in the Republic of Singapore;
c)

d)

e)

f)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Basis of preparation

Singapore Association of the Visually Handicapped (the “Association”) is established and registered
in Singapore under the Societies Act, Cap.31, Charities Act, Cap.37 and Charities (Institutions of a
Public Characters) Regulations. The registered office and principal place of business is situated at 47
Toa Payoh Rise, Singapore 298104.

The National Council of Social Service (“NCSS”) approved the association’s application for renewal
of IPC status (General Fund) from 1 January 2014 to 30 September 2017.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Singapore Financial Reporting
Standards ("FRS'). The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except as disclosed in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformitywith FRS requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Association’s accounting policies. It also requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates and assumptions. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 3.

The financial statements are presented in Singapore Dollars which is the Association's functional
currency.

to facilitate and encourage greater participationof the visually handicapped in the administration
of their affairs and activities and in the management of the Association;
to work towards the abolition of architectural, attitudinal, social, cultural, educational,
employment and any other barriers that prevent the total integration and equal treatment of the
visually handicapped in the community;
to encourage eye-care and safety and research in the preventionand cure of blindness and related
disease; and
to do any or all such other things as are incidental or conducive to the attainment of the above
objects and shall include the appeal for funds in aid of visually handicapped.

8
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SINGAPORE ASSOCIATION OF THE VISUALLY HANDICAPPED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

2.3 Standards issued but not yet effective

Effective for annual periods
Description beginning or after

Improvements to FRSs (January 2014) 
- Amendments to FRS113 Fair Value Measurement 1 July 2014
- Amendments to FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures 1 July 2014
- Amendments to FRS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment 1 July 2014

  and FRS 38 Intangible Assets

In the current financial year, the Association has adopted all the new and revised FRSs and
Interpretationsof FRS (“INT FRS”) that are relevant to its operations and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2014.

Below is the mandatory standard, amendment and interpretation to existing standards that have been
published, and are relevant for the Association’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April
2013 or later periods and which the Association has not adopted:

The adoption of these new/revised FRSs and INT FRSs does not result in changes to the
Association’s accounting policies and has no material effect on the amounts reported for the current
or prior years.

The Executive Committee expects that the adoption of the standards and interpretations above will
have no material impact on the financial statements in the period of initial application except for the
following:

Improvements to FRSs (January 2014) Related Party Disclosures

Improvements to FRSs (January 2014) Related Party Disclosures clarify that an entity providing key
management personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity is a
related party of the reporting entity. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required 
disclose the expenses incurred for management services. The improvements to FRSs (January 2014)
FRS 24 Related Party Disclosures are effective from annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014. As this is a disclosure standard, it will not have any impact on the financialperformance or the
financial position of the Associate when implemented.

9
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SINGAPORE ASSOCIATION OF THE VISUALLY HANDICAPPED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment 

Leasehold buildings - 20 years
Furniture, fittings and equipment - 5 to 10 years
Motor vehicles - 5 years
Renovation - 10 years

2.5 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value on the first-in-first-out basis.

Cost includes all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value represents the estimated net
selling price.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment that has already been recognized is
added to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Association and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably.

The cost of an item of plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Association; and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The cost of an item of plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price; any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the locationand conditionnecessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management; the initial estimate of the costs of
dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. These include costs
incurred initiallyto acquire or construct the plant and equipment and costs incurred subsequently to
add to, replace part of, or service it. The costs of day-to-day servicing of the plant and equipment are
recognised in the statement of financial activities as incurred.

Plant and equipment are carried at cost on initial recognition and after initial recognition at cost less
any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method to write off the cost of the asset over its estimated useful life. The
estimated useful lives of the plant and equipment are as follows:

The residual values, estimated useful lives and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting date. The effects of any revision are
recognized in profit or loss when the changes arise.

On disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the disposal
proceeds and its carrying amount is included in the profit or loss. Any amount in revaluation reserve
relating to that asset is transferred to retained profits directly upon disposal of that asset.

10
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.7 Financial assets

The Association assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indicationexists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Association makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value less
costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset are
discounted to their present value. 

Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is written down to
its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of financial activities
except for assets that are previously revalued where the revaluation was taken to equity. In this case
the impairment is also recognised in equity up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

Financial assets are recognised on the statement of financial position when, and only when, the
Association becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

A financial asset is derecognised where the contractual right to receive cash flows from the asset has
expired. On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and any cumulative gain or loss that has been
recognised directly in equity is recognised in the statement of financial position.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. A previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation,had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of
financial activities unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase.

11



61SAVH Annual Report 2014/15

SINGAPORE ASSOCIATION OF THE VISUALLY HANDICAPPED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.7 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

As at year end date, there were no financial assets classified in this category.

(b) Available-for-sale financial assets

(c) Loans and receivables

(d) Held-to-maturity financial assets

As at year end date, there were no financial assets classified in this category.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised or derecognised on the trade
date i.e. the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.

Subsequent measurement based on the classification of the financial assets in one of the following
four categories under FRS 39 is as follows:

Available-for-sale financial assets are financial assets that are not classified in any of the other
categories. After initial recognition,available-for-salefinancialassets are measured at fair value.
Any gains or losses from changes in fair value of the financialasset are recognised directly in the
fair value adjustment reserve in equity, except that impairment losses, foreign exchange gains
and losses and interest calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in the
income statement. The cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in
the income statement when the financial asset is derecognised.

Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at
cost less impairment loss.

Financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as loans and receivables. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, and
through the amortisation process.

12
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets

(a) Assets carried at amortised cost

(b) Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financialassets carried at amortised cost
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. The impairment loss is recognised in the statement of financial
activities.

The Association assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and recognises an allowance for impairment when
such evidence exists.

When the asset becomes uncollectible, the carrying amount of impaired financial assets is
reduced directly or if an amount was charged to the allowance account, the amounts charged to
the allowance account are written off against the carrying value of the financial asset.

To determine whether there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financialassets has
been incurred, the Association considers factors such as the probability of insolvency or
significant financial difficulties of the debtor and default or significant delay in payments.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not
exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date. The amount of reversal is recognised in the profit
or loss. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financialasset carried at cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financialasset. Such impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent
periods.

13
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.8 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

2.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Other payables

 Donation in kind

2.10

2.11

Other payables are recognised initiallyat fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash with banks, short term deposits and highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. 

A donation in kind is included in the statement of financial activities based on an estimate of the fair
value at the date of the receipt of the donation of a non-monetaryasset or the grant for the right to the
monetary asset. The donation is recognised if the amount of the donation in kind can be measured
reliably and there is no uncertainty that it will be received.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, objective evidence of
impairment include (i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor, (ii) information
about significant changes with an adverse effect that have taken place in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates, and indicates that the cost
of the investment in equity instrument may not be recovered; and (iii) a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the investment below its costs. 'Significant' is to be evaluated against
the original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has
been below its original cost.

If an available-for-salefinancial asset is impaired, an amount comprising the difference between
its cost (net of any principal repayment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from equity to profit or
loss. Reversals of impairment losses in respect of debts instruments are recognised in profit or
loss if the increase in fair value of the debt instrument can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of financial activities.

14
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Capital donation

Funds

Unrestricted Funds

Revenue

(a) Grants from National Council of Social Service (“NCSS”) and Singapore Totalisator Board

(b) Donations

(c) Fund raising

(d) Sale of braille embossing

2.12

2.13

2.14

Funds of the Association comprise mainly the Accumulated Funds, which are unrestricted. These
funds are expendable at the discretion of the Executive Committee in furtherance of the Association's
objectives.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Association and the revenue can be reliably measured and the followingspecific recognitioncriteria
must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Donations are recognised in the statement of financial activities when they have been received.
Donation-in-kind are recognised when the fair value of the assets received can be reasonably
ascertained.

Revenue from special event is recognised when the event takes place.

Donations received for the purchase of capital assets are accounted for in the respective Capital Fund
Accounts. Amount utilised for purchase fixed assets are transferred to the Deferral Capital Donations
account and amortised over the useful lives of the related assets to match the depreciation of the
assets purchased with the related donations.

Revenue from sale of braille embossing is recognised when the braille materials have been
delivered to the customers and the customers have accepted the materials, and collection of the
related receivables is reasonably assured.

NCSS and Singapore Totalisator Board Grants are for the Low Vision Clinic, Vision
RehabilitationProgramme, Braille Production Unit, Library and Care and Share Grant. They are
recognised upon receipt on quarterly basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Revenue (Cont'd) 

(e) Sale of merchandise

(f) Rendering of services

(g) Interest income

Employee benefits

(a) Pensions obligations

(b) Employee leave entitlement

Functional currency

2.14

2.15

2.16

The Association contributes to the Central Provident Fund ('CPF'), which is a pension
contribution plan regulated and managed by the Singapore Government. The Association's CPF
contributionswhich apply to employees, are charged to the statement of financialactivities in the
period to which the contributions relate.

The functional currency of the Association is Singapore Dollar. As the receipts and payments of the
Society are predominantly denominated in Singapore Dollar, the Executive Committee is of the
opinion that the Singapore Dollar reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and
circumstances relevant to the Association.

Interest income from bank deposits and bonds is accrued on a time proportion basis, taking into
account the principal amounts outstanding and the interest rates applicable on an effective yield
method.

Other miscellaneous income is recognised upon receipt.

Employee entitlement to annual leave is recognised when they accrue to employees only. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for unconsumed leave as a result of services
rendered by the employees up to the reporting date.

Revenue from sale of merchandise is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, net of return and allowances. Revenue is recognized when the significant risk and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is
probable and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from rendering of services, which include massage services and dining, that are of
short duration is recognized when the services are completed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Operating leases

Related parties

A related party is defined as follows:

(a)

(b) An entity is related to the Association if any of the following conditions applies:

2.18

2.17

Leases of assets in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are taken to the income statement on a straight-linebasis over the
period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired, any payment required to
be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the financial year in which
termination takes place.

A person or a close member of that person's family is related to the Association if that person
has control or joint control over the Association,has significantinfluence over the Associationor
is a governing board member, trustee or member of the key management personnel of the
Association or of a parent of the Association.

The entity and the Association are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

The entity is an associate or joint venture of the the Association (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which Association is a member) and vice versa;

(i)

(ii)

Both entities are joint venture of the same third party;

The entity is a joint venture of a third party and the Association is an associate of the third
entity and vice versa;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

A person identified in (a) has significant influence over the entity or is a governing board
member, trustee or member of the key management personnel of the entity or of a parent of
the entity.

(vi)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

3.1 Judgements made in applying accounting policies

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(a) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

(b) Allowance for doubtful accounts

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-linebasis over their useful lives. The
Executive Committee estimates the useful lives of these plant and equipment to be 5 to 20 years.
The carrying amount of the Association's property, plant and equipment at 31 March 2015 was
$130,249 (2014: $141,305). Changes in the expected level of usage and technological
developments could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of these assets,
therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.

Estimates, assumptions concerning the future and judgements are made in the preparation of the
financial statements. They affect the application of the Association's accounting policies, reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are assessed on an
on-going basis and are based on experience and relevant factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Executive Committee is of the view that there are no critical judgements involvedthat will have a
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
balance sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

An allowance is made for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the subsequent
inability of the customers to make required payments. If the financial conditions of the
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances may be required in future periods. Executive Committee specifically
analyses other receivables and analyses historical bad debt, customer concentrations, customer
creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes in customer payment terms when
evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts. At the statement of financial
position date, the receivables are measured at fair value and their fair values might change
materially within the next financial year but these changes would not arise from assumptions or
other sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date. The carrying amounts of other
receivables at the statement of financial position date are disclosed in Note 6 to the financial
statements.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

3.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)

(c) Net realisable value of inventories

A review is made periodically on inventory for excess inventory, obsolescence and declines in
net realisable value below cost and an allowance is recorded against the inventory balance for
any such declines. These reviews require Executive Committee to estimate future demand for the
products. In any case the realisable value represents the best estimate of the recoverable amount
and is based on the most reliable evidence available at the year end date and inherently involves
estimates regarding the future expected realisable value. The benchmarks for determining the
amount of allowance or write-down include ageing analysis, technical assessment and
subsequent events. In general, such an evaluation process requires significant judgment and
materially affects the carrying amount of inventories at the year end date. Possible changes in
these estimates could result in revisions to the valuation of inventory. The carrying amount of
inventories at the statement of financial position date are disclosed in Note 8 to the financial
statements.
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5. FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
       2015        2014

       $        $
Available-for-sale financial assets
Unquoted shares, at cost 1,000             1,000

6. OTHER RECEIVABLES
       2015        2014

       $        $

Other debtors 255,115         933,764
Deposit 14,070           14,870
Interest receivable 25,830           -
Prepayment 54,041           4,697

349,056         953,331

7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
       2015        2014

       $        $

Cash at hand 1,979             4,300
Cash and bank 4,245,790      5,451,421
Fixed deposits 3,000,000      -

7,247,769      5,455,721

Other receivables are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand unless otherwise stated. At
the year end date, the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair values.
Other receivables at year-end date are denominated in Singapore Dollars.

The fixed deposit bears interest of fixed deposits range from 1.10% to 1.35% (2014: 0.50% to
2.00%) per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents at year-end date are denominated in Singapore Dollars.

The unquoted available -for-sale investment is held for long-term strategic purposes in accordance
with the Association's plans.

Unquoted equity investments offer the Association opportunity for return through dividend.
Unquoted shares stated at cost have no market prices and the fair value cannot be reliably measured
using valuation techniques.
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8. INVENTORIES
       2015        2014

       $        $

Merchandise, at cost 106,967         99,702
Less:   Inventories written-off (2,158)            -

  Provision for inventories obsolescence (63,027)          -
41,782           99,702

9. BUILDING FUND
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 1,072,344      330,000
Add: Funds received during the year -                     765,644
Less: Expenses during the year -                     (23,300)
Balance at the end of the financial year 1,072,344      1,072,344

10. CARE AND SHARE FUND
       2015        2014

       $        $

Income
Fund received during the year 300,000         -

Less: Expenses
Depreciation of plant and equipment (1,245)            -
Operating expenses (95,738)          -
Staff costs (7,110)            -

(104,093)        -

Balance at the end of the financial year 195,907         -

This Fund is used to pay for expenses relating to rebuilding an extension of existing Association
Building and for new building expenses.

The cost of inventoriesrecognised as an expense and included in "cost of sales" amounts to $269,523
(2014: $134,352).
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10. CARE AND SHARE FUND (CONT'D)

11. COMMUNITY PROJECT FUND
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning/ end of the financial year 20,866           20,866

12. DESIGNATED DONATION FUND
       2015        2014

Note        $        $

Assistive Devices Fund 12a 146,805         157,479
Autobiography Therapy Fund 12b 10,000           10,000
Car Wash Project Fund 12c 11,330           11,330
Developmental Vision Programme Fund 12d 22,232           22,232
Dining in the Dark Fund 12e 254,533         152,063
Education and Training Fund 12f 21,855           21,855
Elderly Activity Fund 12g 2,955             2,707
IT Training and Related Fund 12h 14,785           20,622
Public Education Fund 12i 15,839           15,839
Recreational Therapy Fund 12j 6,042             6,042
SAVH Scholarship Fund 12k 50,000           50,000
Skills Training Fund 12l 104,958         102,470
White Cane Day Fund 12m 109,892         109,514
Baking Fund 12n 4,001             4,001
Home Care Programme fund 12o 111,757         208,856

886,984         895,010

This Fund is used for expenses incurred in community projects.

This Fund is a national fund-raising and volunteerism movement led by Community Chest for the
social service sector, in celebration of SG50 this year. It aims to bring our nation together to show
care and concern for the needy and recognise the contributions made by voluntary welfare
organisations (VWOs). Eligible donations raised by CommunityChest and participating VWOs from
1 Dec 2013 till 31 Mar 2016 will be matched dollar-for-dollar by the government. The matched
amount will go towards building the capabilities and capacities of the social service sector and
supporting social services to meet rising needs.
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12a. Assistive Devices Fund 
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 157,479         149,403
Add: Income during the year 259,045         134,558
Less: Expenses during the year (269,719)        (126,482)
Balance at the end of the financial year 146,805         157,479

12b. Autobiography Therapy Fund
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 10,000           -
Add: Fund received during the year -                     10,000
Balance at the end of the financial year 10,000           10,000

12c. Car Wash Project Fund
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 11,330           4,799
Add: Income during the year -                     6,815
Less: Expenses during the year -                     (284)
Balance at the end of the financial year 11,330           11,330

This Fund is used for purchase of stocks of assistive devices, payment for repair services and
maintenance contracts of the ADC. This fund is also used to subsidise the purchase of ADC devices
by clients who qualify under the welfare scheme through means testing

This Fund is established to develop employable skills in our clients as well as to generate extra
income for them. This fund is mainly used for purchases of car washing items.

This Fund is to assist clients to relate and write about their personal experiences and encounters in a
group setting as a means to provide encouragement to each other and also others. Through this, it
acts as a therapy for the writers to understand their needs, aspirations as well as their limitations. It
further assists them to enhance their living and moderate their expectations.
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12d. Developmental Vision Programme Fund
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning/ end of the financial year 22,232           22,232

12e. Dining in the Dark Fund
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 152,063         92,255
Add: Income during the year 156,609         113,555
Less: Expenses during the year (54,139)          (53,747)
Balance at the end of the financial year 254,533         152,063

12f. Education and Training Fund
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning/ end of the financial year 21,855           21,855

This Fund is used for an early interventionprogramme set up for visually impaired children from age
1-6. Parents or caregivers will be given relevant training or resource material in order for them to
foster the development of these children. The fund can also be used for any purpose that leads to
helping these young children learn and develop cognitively, socially, emotionally and physically.

This Fund is used to subsidise in part or in full the education and training needs of visually impaired
clients and children of visually impaired parents. It is not restricted to academic studies only, but is
available also for training courses for visually impaired adults so that they can earn a living.

This Fund is used to generate public awareness about vision impairment, and for sighted persons to
better appreciate the skills and confidence required to cope in the dark. It also creates an opportunity
for fund raising to cover the cost of the programme and generates allowances for trainees.
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12g. Elderly Activity Fund
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 2,707             2,789
Add: Income during the year 400                200
Less: Expenses during the year (152)               (282)
Balance at the end of the financial year 2,955             2,707

12h. IT Training and Related Fund 
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning and end of the financial year 20,622           20,622
Add: Income during the year 15,000           -
Less: Expenses during the year (20,837)          -
Balance at the end of the financial year 14,785           20,622

12i. Public Education Fund
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning/ end of the financial year 15,839           15,839

This Fund is used for the Association’s ongoing efforts in education and creating awareness among
the public.

This Fund is used for any of the activities held within or outside the Association that are organised
for the elderly. The activities are organised to promote physical health and social interaction among
the elderly clients of the Association.

This Fund is used to help clients develop themselves through IT training and related skills. It is also
used for payment of the necessary equipment and all related costs.
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12j. Recreational Therapy Fund
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning/ end of the financial year 6,042             6,042

12k. SAVH Scholarship Fund
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning/ end of the financial year 50,000           50,000

12l. Skills Training Fund
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 102,470         98,077
Add: Income during the year 28,882           44,895
Less: Expenses during the year (26,394)          (40,502)
Balance at the end of the financial year 104,958         102,470

This Fund is used for disbursing scholarships which give visually impaired persons an opportunity to
go overseas for short periods (up to a maximum of one year) to gain exposure and expertise. The
person could be on an exchange programme or attend a short course overseas. The objectives of this
fund are for clients to acquire more specialised skills from overseas and to return to transfer the
expertise acquired and to groom other visually impaired persons to be future leaders of the
Association and the visually impaired community.

This Fund is used for training with therapy. It promotes both physical and mental well-being of
clients through music, art and gardening. It is also used for payment of Touch Art materials and tools
for recreational activities.

This Fund is used to equip clients with skills to become qualified job candidates, develop a care plan
or maintenance of job and skills to potential employers and train to become more productive workers.
It will also pay allowances from the sale proceeds of handicraft products and payment for general
purchases.
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12m.White Cane Day Fund 
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 109,514         103,048
Add: Income during the year 5,000             10,409
Less: Expenses during the year (4,622)            (3,943)
Balance at the end of the financial year 109,892         109,514

12n. Baking Fund
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 4,001             3,806
Add: Income during the year -                     195
Balance at the end of the financial year 4,001             4,001

12o. Home Care Programme fund
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 208,856         90,000
Add: Fund transfer from President's Challenge Fund 150,000         150,000
Add: Income during the year -                 35,000
Less: Expenses during the year (247,099)        (66,144)
Balance at the end of the financial year 111,757         208,856

This Fund is used for White Cane Day expenses and for creation of public awareness, in particular,
to potential employers of the visually impaired, and for honouring the many achievements of the
visually impaired.

This Fund is used for raw materials used for baking cakes and other types of biscuits.

This Fund is used for paying staff employed for this program, transport cost to ferry staff to the
homes of clients and all cost related to this program. In this financial year, the President's Challenge
has allocated a sum of $150,000 to support this programme.
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13. DONATED ASSETS CAPITALISATION FUND
       2015        2014

       $        $

Unamortised balance at the beginning of the financial year 98,932 98,020
Additions, at cost -                     28,107
Less: Amortisation (24,769)          (27,195)
Unamortised balance at the end of the financial year 74,163           98,932

14. MOBILE MASSAGE FUND
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 74,126           46,378
Add: Income

Donations 1,859             2,061
Service income 706,650         558,560
Sponsorship 590                262
Miscellaneous income -                     18,882
Amortisation of Donated Assets Capitalisation Fund 253                253

709,352         580,018
Less: Expenses

Depreciation of plant and equipment (874)               (617)
Operating expenses (628,673)        (489,783)
Staff costs (74,819)          (61,870)

(704,366)        (552,270)

Balance at the end of the financial year 79,112 74,126

15. PRESIDENT'S CHALLENGE FUND
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 1,591             300,042
Add: Fund received during the year 150,000         150,000
Less: Expenses during the year -                     (298,451)
Less: Fund transfer to Home Care Programme Fund (150,000)        (150,000)
Balance at the end of the financial year 1,591             1,591

This Fund comprises the proceeds received from donors and the revenue received from massage
services rendered after deducting amounts paid to masseurs. Expenses incurred by the Mobile
Massage Team Department are disbursed from this fund.

This Fund is used to capitalise assets that are donated to the Association.
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15. PRESIDENT'S CHALLENGE FUND (CONT'D)

16. SCHOLARSHIP AND TRAINING RESERVE FUND
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning/ end of the financial year 23,816           23,816

17. STAFF WELFARE FUND
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 1,286             1,386
Add: Fund received during the year -                     500
Less: Expenses during the year -                     (600)
Balance at the end of the financial year 1,286             1,286

18. TAN CHAY BING EDUCATION FUND
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 57,900           50,100
Add: Funds received during the year 42,200           50,000
Less: Disbursement during the year (50,000)          (42,200)
Balance at the end of the financial year 50,100           57,900

This Fund is used for disbursing scholarships which give visually impaired persons an opportunity to
go overseas for short periods (up to one year) to gain exposure and expertise. The person could be on
an exchange programme or attend a short course overseas. The objectives of this fund are for clients
to acquire more specialised skills from overseas and to return to transfer the expertise and to groom
other visually impaired persons to be future leaders of the Association and the visually impaired
community.

This Fund is set up by the National Council of Social Services (“NCSS”) for the social welfare of the
Association’s staff.

This Fund is to provide bursaries to primary to tertiary level visually impaired students, who are from
households with a combined income of less than $1,500.

This Fund is initiated by Mr SR Nathan while he was President of Singapore to help the less
fortunate and to generate public understanding of the critical needs of the less fortunate in Singapore.
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19. THE ESTATE OF RENEE CHEW FUND
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 19,564           21,650
Less: Cost of equipment -                     (2,086)
Balance at the end of the financial year 19,564           19,564

20. CREDIT SUISSE TUITION SUBSIDY SCHEME FUND
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 9,300             12,900
Less: Expenses during the year (4,400)            (3,600)
Balance at the end of the financial year 4,900             9,300

21. WHITE CANE CLUB PROJECT FUND
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 24,382           14,407
Add: Income

Donations 9,475             23,992
Miscellaneous income 55                  2,720
Membership subscription 230                78

9,760             26,790
Less: Expenses

Operating expenses (11,102)          (9,851)
Staff costs (5,790)            (6,964)

(16,892)          (16,815)

Balance at the end of the financial year 17,250           24,382

This Fund is used to cover the Club's operating expenses and expenses of other social, educational
and recreational activities organised for its members.

This Fund is donation from Credit Suisse through their Asia Pacific Philanthropy Committee and is
used to provide a tuition subsidy to visually impaired students at the Light House School.

This Fund is to provide for the maintenance of Association's facilities.
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22. BRAILLE PRODUCTION UNIT PROGRAMME FUND
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year (87,722)          (58,644)
Add: Income

Grants received during the year 172,137         201,709
Donations 6,200             6,842
Sales income 54,426           106,438
Miscellaneous income 2,918             1,767
Amortisation of Donated Assets Capitalisation Fund 5,132             4,704
Fund transfer from Braille Fund -                     2,163

240,813         323,623

Less: Expenses
Depreciation of plant and equipment (7,949)            (5,957)
Operating expenses (101,380)        (138,611)
Staff costs (249,766)        (208,133)

(359,095)        (352,701)

Balance at the end of the financial year (206,004)        (87,722)

23. LIBRARY PROGRAMME FUND
       2015        2014

       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year (22,593)          (41,665)
Add: Income

Grants received during the year 37,267           4,600
Donations 1,300
Miscellaneous income -                     46
Amortisation of Donated Assets Capitalisation Fund 193                192
Fund transfer from Braille Fund -                     69,407

38,760           74,245

This Fund comprises mainly grant received from National Council of Social Service under
Community Chest Grant Funding, income from provision of Braille transcription services for
students, educational institutions,public and private organisations,and also donations from individual
and corporate donors. 

The deficit fund would be drawn down from the Accumulated Fund.
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23. LIBRARY PROGRAMME FUND (CONT'D)
       2015        2014

       $        $
Less: Expenses

Depreciation of plant and equipment (552)               (279)
Operating expenses (26,060)          (22,864)
Staff costs (32,632)          (32,030)

(59,244)          (55,173)

Balance at the end of the financial year (43,077)          (22,593)

24. LOW VISION CLINIC PROGRAMME FUND

       2015        2014
       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year (275,351)        (247,989)
Add: Income

Grants received during the year 62,065           61,248
Miscellaneous income 6,750             15,228
Amortisation of Donated Assets Capitalisation Fund 60                  1,374

68,875           77,850

Less: Expenses
Depreciation of plant and equipment (1,962)            (1,896)
Operating expenses (30,581)          (28,987)
Staff costs (77,150)          (74,329)

(109,693)        (105,212)

Balance at the end of the financial year (316,169)        (275,351)

This Fund comprises mainly grant from National Council of Social Service under the Community
Chest Grant Funding and donations received from individual and corporate donors. This programme
provides clients with loans of reading materials like Braille and talking books, and multimedia like
music CDs and DVD movies with audio description. 

The deficit fund would be drawn down from the Accumulated Fund.
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24. LOW VISION CLINIC PROGRAMME FUND (CONT'D)

25. VISION REHABILITATION PROGRAMME FUND 

       2015        2014
       $        $

Balance at the beginning of the financial year (148,653)        (69,673)
Add: Income

Grants received during the year 256,926         253,129
Donations 2,200             3,150
Miscellaneous income 6,405             80,526
Amortisation of Donated Assets Capitalisation Fund 937                936
Fund transfer from Rehabilitation Fund -                     28,413

266,468         366,154
Less: Expenses

Depreciation of plant and equipment (1,182)            (1,020)
Operating expenses (107,236)        (124,927)
Staff costs (280,632)        (319,187)

(389,050)        (445,134)

Balance at the end of the financial year (271,235)        (148,653)

This Fund comprises mainly grant from Singapore Totalisator Board Social Service Fund through
National Council of Social Service and also income received from programme fees from clients and
fees from teaching institutions. This programme provides clients with assessment and review of their
vision by optometrists and recommendation for low vision devices where necessary. 

The deficit fund would be drawn down from the Accumulated Fund.

This Fund comprises mainly grant from Singapore Totalisator Board Social Service Fund through
National Council of Social Service and also donations received from corporate and individualdonors
to operate and provide vision rehabilitationfor clients. This programme provides training and help to
clients in areas like basic cane techniques, orientationand mobilityand activities of daily living.Other
assistance and case management are also addressed through this programme. 

The deficit fund would be drawn down from the Accumulated Fund.
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26. OTHER PAYABLES                                      
       2015        2014

       $        $

Other payables 54,454           48,021
Accruals 73,130           89,042
Deferred revenue 24,207           15,041

151,791         152,104

27. DONATIONS
       2015        2014

       $        $

Tax deductible donations 445,302         369,763
Non-tax deductible donations 127,421         236,217

572,723         605,980

28. FUND RAISING
       2015        2014

       $        $
Income
Tax deductible donations 940,235         477,848
Non-tax deductible donations 258,003         243,773
Sales- Tickets 160,764         152,524
Sponsorships 152,320         137,800

1,511,322      1,011,945

Less: Fund raising related expenses (82,342)          (61,189)
Net proceeds 1,428,980      950,756

During the financial year, the main fund raising events include Donation Draw, Flag Day, SAVH
Charity Dinner, CitiYMCA- Project Illuminate and CitiYMCA- Term Art for Color.

Other payables are unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand unless otherwise stated. At
year-end date, other payables are denominated in Singapore Dollars
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29. GRANTS AND FUNDINGS
       2015        2014

       $        $

National Council of Social Service 509,404         206,309
Singapore Totalisator Board 318,991         314,377
VWOs-Charities Capability 11,023           19,195
Miscellaneous 1,140             1,140

840,558         541,021

30. MISCELLANEOUS INCOME
       2015        2014

       $        $

Administration 415                134,364
Assistive Device Centre 30                  13,312
Low Vision Clinic 60                  10,000
Mobile Massage Fund -                     18,814
Operational Support Service -                     54,733
Vision Rehabilitation Programme 6,406             80,298
Miscellaneous 3,629             6,592

10,540           318,113

31. OTHER INCOME
       2015        2014

       $        $

Interest income 33,053           14,634
Dividend income 276                414
Job credits 126,346         83,364
Other income 46,010           5,722

205,685         104,134

32. SALES
       2015        2014

       $        $

Sale of braille embossing 54,426           106,438
Sale of merchandise 287,684         168,279
Massage services 706,650         558,560
Dining 137,449         113,555

1,186,209      946,832
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33. CHARITABLE ACTIVITIES EXPENSES 
       2015        2014

       $        $

Cost of sales 269,523         134,352
CPF, SDF and FWL 138,096         106,000
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 33,075           30,418
Disbursement from projects -                     298,452
Disbursement to trainees 76,953           74,821
General expenses 38,526           24,951
Masseur's charges 561,399         440,730
Operational expense 434,128         340,970
Printing and stationery 12,713           60,799
Professional fees 17,662           20,865
Repairs and maintenance 86,903           70,982
Staff salary and bonus 1,032,876      841,530
Supplies production 41,474           44,958
Utilities 48,467           48,376
Other expenses 58,812           58,759

2,850,607      2,596,963

34. OTHER OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
       2015        2014

       $        $

Bad debts written off 1,168 -
CPF, SDF and FWL 26,678           21,655
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 7,518             6,607
Disbursement to trainees -                     13,134
Financial and accounting services 75,052           76,487
Operational expense 46,070           37,238
Printing and stationery 18,799           10,404
Professional fees 6,790             30,805
Staff salaries and bonuses 197,706         163,415
Utilities 8,685             10,278
Other expenses 50,462           44,291

438,928         414,314

35. TAXATION

No provision for taxation has been provided as the income is exempt from tax under Section
13(1)(zm) of the Singapore Income Tax Act.

37



87SAVH Annual Report 2014/15

SINGAPORE ASSOCIATION OF THE VISUALLY HANDICAPPED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 MARCH 2015

36. EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

       2015        2014
Number of employees in bands:
$100,001 and above 1                    1

Total number of staff 46                  41

Key management personnel are:

(a)

(b)

37. RESERVES AND POLICY

Percentage
       2015        2014      Increase of increase

       $        $      $ %

Accumulated funds 5,170,182      4,199,838    970,344         23.10

Ratio of funds to annual
operating expenditure 11.78             10.14           1.64               16.20

The Association's reserves policy is as follow:

The number of employees (including key management personnel) whose remuneration exceeds
$100,000 in the year is as follows:

The Executive Committee is the final authority and is overall responsible for policy making and
determination of all activities. Executive Committee members are volunteers and received no
monetary remuneration for their contribution.

The reserves position of the Singapore Association of the Visually Handicapped for the financialyear
ended 31 March 2015 is as follows

The Executive Director having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Association directly or indirectly.

The reserve of Singapore Association of the Visually Handicapped provides financial stability and
the means for the development of Association's activity. Singapore Association of the Visually
Handicapped intends to maintain the reserve at a level sufficient for its operating needs.

The Executive Committee will review annually the amount of funds that is required to ensure that
they are adequate to fulfill the Association's continuing obligations.

The above accumulated funds are the net amount after deducting the deficit funds of Braille
Production Unit Programme Fund, Library Programme Fund, Low Vision Clinic Programme Fund
and Vision Rehabilitation Programme Fund.
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38. MANAGEMENT OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

(a) Categories of financial instruments

       2015        2014
      $      $

Financial assets
Financial assets, available-for-sale 1,000             1,000
Other receivables                                 295,015         948,634
Cash and cash equivalents                                         7,247,769      5,455,721

7,543,784      6,405,355

Financial liability
Other payables                                      127,584         137,063

(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives

(c) Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

As the Association's transactions are denominated in Singapore Dollars, the Association in
not exposed to any foreign currency risk. As such, sensitivity analysis is not necessary.

It is not the practice for the trustees/office bearers, or people connected with them, to receive
remuneration, or other benefits, from the Association for which they are responsible, or from
institutions connected with the Association. 

All committee members and staffs of the Association are required to read and understand the conflict
of interest policy in place and make full disclosure of interests, relationships and holdings that could
potentially result in conflict of interests. When a conflict of interest situation arises, the committee
members and staffs shall abstain from participating in the discussion, decision making and voting on
the matter. 

The following table sets out the financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period:

The Association's overall financial risk management programme seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects of financial performance of the Association.

There has been no change to the Association'sexposure to these financialrisks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risk.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D)

(c) Market risk (Cont'd)

(ii) Interest rate risk

       2015        2014
      $      $

Within one year - fixed rate
Fixed deposits 3,000,000      -

(d) Liquidity risk

         Carrying         Within
         amount         Total         1 year

      $       $       $
2015
Other payables 127,584       127,584         127,584

2014
Other payables 137,063       137,063         137,063

Contractual cash flows

The Association's exposure to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the interest-
bearing fixed deposits. The fixed deposit bears interest of financial position date and the
periods in which they mature are as follows:

Interest on financial instruments is fixed until the maturity of the instruments. The other
financial instruments of the Association that are not included in the above table are not
subject to interest rate risks.

The Association monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
deemed adequate by the Executive Committee to finance the Association's operations and to
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. Typically, the Association ensures that it has
sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational expenses.

The following tables detail the remaining contractual maturity for non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Association can be required to pay.

The Association's Statement of Financial Activities account and reserve are not
significantly affected by the changes in interest rates as the interest-bearing financial
instruments carry fixed interest rates and are measured at amortised cost. As such,
sensitivity analysis is not necessary.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONT'D)

(e) Credit risk

(f) Market price risk

40. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

(a) Fair value of financial instruments that are carried at fair value

Level 1 -

Level 2 -

Level 3 -

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables represent the Association's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financialassets. No other financialassets carry a
significant exposure to credit risk.

The Associationplaces its managed investment portfolio, bank balances and fixed deposits with
reputable established financial institutions. Therefore, credit risk on these financial assets is
limited because the counter-parties are banks with acceptable credit ratings.

Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of the Association's financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than interest or exchange rates). The
Association is not exposed to market price risk.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements represents the
Association's maximum exposure to credit risk.

The Association measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, and

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

At 31 March 2015, the association only held investment security (available-for-sale)amounting
to $1,000 (2014: $1,000). The fair value measurement of these investment security is
categorised as Level 3 (2014: Level 3)
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40. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (CONT'D)

(b)

41. AUTHORISATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financialstatements of the Associationfor the financialended 31 March 2015 were authorised for
issue in accordance with a resolution of the Executive Committee on 20 July 2015.

Fair value of financial instruments by classes that are not carried at fair value and whose
carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value

Management has determined that the carrying amounts of other receivables, cash and bank
balances and other payables reasonably approximate their fair values either due to their short
term nature or that they are floating rate instruments that are re-priced to market interest rates
on or near the statement of financial position date.
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The financial statements of the Association for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 were 
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Executive Committee on 20 July 2015.
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